
 
ATKINSON ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

21 Academy Avenue 
Atkinson, New Hampshire   03811 

 
 
 
Public Hearing Meeting Town Hall 
Wednesday August 10, 2011 
 
Present:    Sandy Carter; Glenn Saba; Sam Zannini; John Recesso 

 
Mr. Carter called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Correspondence: 
Incoming:   
 
Outgoing:   None 
                      
Approval of Minutes of July 3, 2011 – Deferred to the next hearing. 
 

Richard Deangelis, Application for a Variance from Article IV Section 410  to allow a deck 
attached to an existing dwelling 15 ft 2 inches from the water (84 feet and 10 inch variance) at 15 
Chase Island Road, Map 22, Lot 15, RR3 Zone. 

Public Hearings - Continued from June 8 and July 13, 2011- 7:30 P.M. 

The applicant had notified the Planning Office that he is still working with DES and asked for a 
continuance. 

Mr. Saba made a motion to continue the hearing based on the applicant’s request. Mr. Zannini 
seconded and it was unanimously approved. 
 

Todd Wallace, Dube Plus Construction,  for D.J. Lowell Trust, Application for Special Exception 
Per Article IV Section 460 to allow Extended Family Accessory Living Unit at 15 Woodlawn Ave, 
Map 13 Lot 50 in the RR2 Zone. 

Public Hearings - Continued from July 13, 2011- 7:35 P.M.  

 
The Applicants requested a continuance while they work with DES .  
 
Mr. Zannini made a motion to continue the hearing based on the applicant’s request. Mr. Saba 
seconded and it was unanimously approved. 
 

Patricia Lincoln, Application for Special Exception per Article IV  Section 460 to allow Extended 
Family Accessory Living Unit at 10 Windmill Lane, Map 6 Lot 58, TR2 Zone. 

Public Hearings: 7:40 P.M.  

 
Abutters list was read with the following present: 
 Ms. Lincoln; Mr. Comeau 
 



Ms. Lincoln explained that she bought this large home because the layout of the home was conducive to 
creating an accessory unit for her parents. On the first floor of the house there was an existing office, 
exercise room and a hallway. She is converting the area to an accessory unit which includes a kitchen and 
a combination living sleeping area. The existing bathroom on the first floor will be shared. There was 
access to the back deck from a small hallway next to the bathroom. The bathroom was enlarged to 
accommodate a shower area and the door to the deck is no longer there. Ms. Lincoln converted two of the 
bedrooms on the second floor into a master bedroom/sitting area. The wall was removed between the 
bedrooms almost in its entirety. A little of it had to be left because it housed the air conditioning duct 
work. This reduced the bedrooms from four to three. Ms. Lincoln stated she is a single person with no 
children and she intends to take care of her parents. The Board reviewed the sketches of the floor plans 
provided.  Mr. Saba asked what the dimension of the accessory unit was and Ms. Lincoln said she 
measured it and was sure it was under the 750 square foot requirement. Mr. Carter told her the Board had 
no discretion and that it had to meet that requirement. Mr. Zannini reviewed the plans in the Towns file 
and upon calculations by Mr. Saba the Board thought this might be a little over depending on where the 
fireplace jutted out and where the door into the unit was located. Ms. Lincoln said she measured when 
there were a lot of boxes and things in the rooms, but she would do whatever she had to do to make the 
unit 750 square feet. The Board agreed they could continue and if approved it would be up to the 
applicant to make sure it complied and would have to be inspected by the building inspector before a 
Certificate of Occupancy would be issued for the accessory unit. Mr. Zannini reviewed the septic plan and 
Mr. Saba confirmed it was issued for a capacity of five bedrooms and that it met the requirements. The 
Board discussed the bathroom and agreed it was part of the common space. Mr. Saba asked if there were 
a door from the kitchen into the hallway leading to the bathroom. Ms. Lincoln said she had intended to 
put one in. Mr. Saba said he would have a hard time agreeing and that would make the bathroom now a 
part of the accessory unit instead of shared space. Ms. Lincoln agreed not to install any door between the 
hall to the bathroom and the kitchen. Mr. Saba asked if the basement was finished and Ms. Lincoln said it 
was one large room with a bathroom. She believed the previous owners had a game room. She does not 
have any plans to utilize this area and reiterated she was a single person and the home was very large for 
her. Mr. Saba asked if the attic was finished and Ms. Lincoln stated it was not and that she had no 
intentions of completing it. 
 
The Board reviewed the application and criterion: 
 

a. The Board agreed this was met as stated 
b. The Board agreed this was met as stated 
c. The Board agreed this will be met with the recording of the Deed Addendum. 
d. The Board agreed this was met as stated 
e. The Board agreed this was met as stated 
f. The Board agreed this was met as stated 
g. The Board agreed this was met as stated 
h. The Board discussed the dimensions of the area and noted that it must be 750 square feet. Ms. 

Lincoln stated that she would have the building inspector measure it for her and she would make 
sure that it met the criteria. She had carpenters ready to do whatever was necessary. The Board 
noted that the bathroom on the main floor would not be counted as part of the accessory living 
unit as it is shared space, it already exists and it is the only bathroom on the first floor. There will 
be no door between the kitchen and the hallway to the bathroom. The Board agreed this will be 
met. 

i. The Board agreed this will be met when inspected and approved by all necessary parties. 
j. The dwelling was a four bedroom home with a five bedroom septic. Two of the bedrooms were 

converted into one master bedroom, making the dwelling a three bedroom home. The addition of 
the accessory unit adds 1.5 bedrooms and meets the water flowage requirements with the current 
septic system. The Board agreed this was met as stated 



k. The Board agreed this was met as stated 
 
Mr. Saba made a motion to grant the request for a Special Exception based on all of the criteria having 
been met. Mr. Zannini seconded and it was unanimously approved. 
 
 
Motion was made and seconded to adjourn the hearing. Mr. Carter adjourned the hearing at 8:15 p.m. 
 

 

Respectfully Submitted   _____________________________________ 

Minutes transcribed from tape  Rebecca Russo 

 
 


